
Recyclable Metal Theft Task Force 
February 16, 2016 

 
 
The Meeting was called to order at 10:11 a.m. by Co-Chairs Hoffman and Unes.   
 
Those members in attendance in addition to the Co-Chairs were: 

 
Lindell Barton, Chief of Police for the Alton & Southern Railway Company 
Kevin Martin, Executive Director of the Illinois Insurance Assn. 
Michael Mervis, Director of Mervis Industries 
Lt. Troy Phillips, Illinois State Police 
Sydney Roberts, Director  of the IL Secretary of State Police 
Brad Serlin, President of United Scrap Metal, Inc. 
Valdimir Talley, Chief of Police for Maywood, Illinois 
Master Sgt. Scott Whitecotton, Illinois State Police. 

 
Co-Chair Hoffman asked the membership to review minutes of the January 13, 2016 
meeting.  Director Sydney Roberts made a motion to approve the minutes.  With no 
objection from the membership, the minutes of the January 13, 2016 meeting were 
approved. 
 
Co-Chair Hoffman indicated there were new members appointed since the last meeting 
and also noted there were some newly appointed members who were unable to make the 
current meeting.  Those members included Chief Brian Fengel of the Bartonville Police 
Department, Sheriff John Lakin of Madison County and Ed VanHoose of the Clay 
Electric Cooperatives.  Co-Chair Hoffman indicated Nick Reitz of the Association of 
Illinois Electric Cooperatives was sitting in the audience and attending on behalf of Mr. 
VanHoose.  Co-Chair Hoffman indicated the Task Force was still awaiting appointments 
from the Illinois Senate, the Illinois Municipal League and Ameren. 
 
Co-Chair Hoffman asked the membership to introduce themselves and provide 
background on their organization for the other members and the audience.  Following 
introductions, Co-Chair Hoffman indicated Micah Miller of the Secretary of State’s 
Office would be the point of contact for the membership.  He further indicated the 
mission of the Task Force was to create model legislation on the issue of recyclable 
metals and to issue an agreed upon report to the Illinois General Assembly by October 
2016. 
 
Co-Chairs Hoffman and Unes set a schedule for the Task Force to meet once a month.  
The Co-Chairs indicated they were interested in hearing testimony from outside parties 
on the issue and invited the membership to make inquiries and invite interested parties to 
testify.  All information concerning these individuals should be sent to Micah Miller at 
the earliest opportunity. 
 



Co-Chair Unes reviewed the language contained in Public Act 97-0923 for the 
membership.  He indicated this was legislation he introduced and passed through the 
Illinois General Assembly.  Co-Chair Unes indicated the legislation has been used as a 
model in other states and credited the assistance of the recycling industry for passage of 
the legislation.  He indicated there was a large piece of language removed from the 
original legislation prior to passage in the Illinois Senate.  The removed language 
provided judges with discretion to assess criminal penalties based on the dollar amount of 
damage caused to the real property when the recyclable metal was stolen.  Co-Chair Unes 
indicated in many cases the damage to property far exceeded the actual cost of the 
materials that were stolen and explained a scenario in his district where a farmer’s 
irrigation system was stolen and damage to the property incurred during the theft 
exceeded $100,000. 
 
Co-Chair Unes indicated that theft of recyclable materials has diminished recently 
because of the drop in prices for the metals but that eventually prices will increase which 
will cause a subsequent rise in thefts of the metals. 
 
Co-Chair Unes indicated he has made two attempts to introduce the language removed 
from Public Act 97-0923.  The first attempt was unsuccessful and the second attempt is 
currently pending in the House Rules Committee.  Co-Chair Unes indicated the 
opposition from the membership of the Illinois General Assembly is because of their 
reluctance to increase criminal penalties.  Co-Chair Unes explained to the Task Force 
membership the legislation would only give the judiciary the discretion to enhance the 
punishment.  The legislation did not mandate an increased penalty.  Kevin Martin 
inquired to Co-Chair Unes as to whether a conversation had been held with the Chair of 
the Senate Committee hearing the legislation.  Co-Chair Unes indicated he has tried to 
work with the Senate Chair but was still unsuccessful in passage of this part of the 
legislation. 
 
Co-Chair Hoffman asked the members of the Task Force to review the pending 
legislation between the current meeting and the next scheduled meeting and if any of the 
members had suggested changes to the legislation, to let Co-Chair Unes know about 
them.  If there were no suggested changes by the Task Force membership, endorsement 
of the pending language could be discussed at the next scheduled Task Force meeting.   
 
Michael Mervis indicated there are best practice operation and legislative models 
available for review on the topic of scrap processing.  The Institute of Scrap Recycling 
Industries (ISRI) has developed them over time and include use of cameras at facilities 
and electronic record keeping.  He further indicated the challenge was getting all 
members of the scrap recycling industry to use the best practice models. 
 
Co-Chair Unes indicated Illinois does not have an association representing the scrap 
recycling businesses and organizations.  ISRI is a national association and they worked 
with Co-Chair Unes and supported passage of Public Act 97-0923. 
 



After an inquiry by Co-Chair Hoffman, Michael Mervis indicated he would leave a copy 
of the ISRI model legislation as well as share copies electronically with the members of 
the Task Force.  Mr. Mervis indicated these best practices also includes environmental 
practices. 
 
Chief Barton indicated many small recyclers in the Metro East area of Illinois closed 
shopped after the passage of Public Act 97-0923 which made some improvements to the 
area.  Chief Barton suggested an electronic state-wide database be developed and require 
all recyclable metal transactions be entered on the database, similar to what is required of 
pawn shops registered to do business in Illinois.  Chief Barton further indicated Illinois 
law enforcement should have access to the database to assist them in their ability to 
locate stolen items. 
 
Sydney Roberts stated the Secretary of State Police has a regulatory function to audit 
recyclable metal businesses to ensure compliance with current Illinois laws but they do 
not currently have enough resources to perform these audits.  She stated the grant money 
used for the task had been swept and Secretary of State Police had to subsequently lay off 
the auditors paid by the fund.  She further indicated the Secretary of State Police can still 
perform audits with existing investigators but partnering and communication with local 
law enforcement agencies and the Illinois State Police would greatly assist in audit 
efforts. 
 
Co-Chair Hoffman asked the membership for their wish lists for the next meeting but also 
opened up discussion with the membership currently present.   
 
Brad Serlin indicated consistency and accountability from the industry is important.  
Smaller organizations go out of business but re-open when the market costs increase the 
value of the product and many times these groups are the ones that don’t abide by current 
law.  He indicated developing a consistent approach can raise the expectations of industry 
members.   
 
Kevin Martin indicated he would be willing to bring experts from the insurance industry 
to testify to the Task Force.  He indicated it is the damage done to the property that is the 
most costly and every policy holder sees the impact of this damage through increased 
policy costs.  He further indicated the Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Council gets $1 
from every policy sold in Illinois to support their grant efforts.  This appropriation raises 
$4-6 million annually and the funds have been swept for the last 2-3 years.  He suggested 
the money generated by the fee be used by this Task Force and to assist in the 
prosecution of theft crimes if it is no longer going to be used to support the Motor 
Vehicle Theft Prevention Council. 
 
Co-Chair Hoffman inquired to Sydney Roberts as to whether there is a desire to re-
establish the Motor Vehicle Theft Prevention Council and the grant program.  Sydney 
Roberts indicated the Secretary of State Police received approximately $1.3 million 
annually from the grants for their theft prevention efforts.  The remaining money was 
disbursed to local task forces for their theft prevention efforts.  Co-Chair Hoffman 



inquired as to whether re-establishment could also include training locals about the 
auditing function.  Sydney Roberts indicated that could be done but would require 
modifications to the old program because of new legislation. 
 
Chief Barton explained about Illinois’ program requiring pawn shops to register their 
products on a central database that is searchable by law enforcement.  He indicated he 
helps them to recover lost items as well as to develop patterns of criminal activity and 
suggested the same type of system for scrap processors.  He also suggested penalties for 
businesses failing to register their information.  Sydney Roberts indicated she learned 
about this pawn shop program when she served on the Precious Metals Task Force and 
would get information to this Task Force about their findings.  Michael Mervis indicated 
there is a difference between items in a pawn shop and items in a scrap recycling business 
in that scrap processors deal with serial numbers and requiring registration of these types 
of items may have unintended consequences.  Co-Chair Hoffman suggested research on 
those states that utilize a centralized repository and how they work. 
 
Michael Mervis indicated his company operates a scrap processing yard in Decatur and 
offered to take the Task Force members on a tour of their facility. 
 
Chief Barton also suggested utilizing and hearing from other state agencies that are 
involved in scrap processing such as the Illinois Department of Transportation and the 
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency.  
 
Chief Talley indicated he liked the content of Co-Chair Unes legislation and suggested 
better training of the industry and general public about stealing recyclable metals and 
attempting to sell them to scrap processors.  He indicated his community (Maywood) 
suffered when the price of recyclable metals was high.  The increased rate of theft from 
the abandoned homes was costly to the community. 
 
Master Sgt Whitecotten indicated he sees three areas where the Task Force can be useful, 
namely awareness, education and enforcement.  He indicated the lack of knowledge by 
the general public on the issue is important and encouraged the use of social media to 
alert the general public and law enforcement organizations about crimes as they are 
committed in their areas.  He suggested training for the law enforcement cadets in the 
Academy on the topic.   
 
Michael Mervis stated that ISRI operates a scrap metal alert system to members of their 
organization when major thefts occur.  He indicated he will send more information about 
the program to Micah Miller with the Secretary of State’s Office for disbursement to the 
Task Force members. 
 
Lt. Phillips indicated when the Motor Theft Prevention Council was abandoned due to 
lack of funding, Illinois State Police officers were shifted to patrol or elsewhere as 
needed.  He further stated the Illinois State Police would be interested in the opportunity 
to talk with the Illinois Secretary of State Police on the recyclable metal theft issue and 



because of their regulatory function the Secretary of State Police could take the lead on 
this issue and also partner with the scrap processing industry. 
 
Co-Chair Hoffman indicated the purpose of legislation on the issue is not to hurt good 
people who are observing the law.  He asked law enforcement to get information to the 
Task Force by way of Micah Miller on what they need and asked Micah Miller to 
research information about the pawn shop registry to educate Task Force members prior 
to the next meeting. 
 
A brief discussion took place between the Task Force membership about the Illinois 
licensing fees paid by scrap processing operations and how the fee was distributed to the 
State.  None of the membership had any answers to the question as to how the fees are 
distributed.  Chief Talley indicated some operations are also required to pay for a local 
license to operate within certain communities. 
 
Co-Chair Hoffman asked the membership whether or not the date of March 21, 2016 
would be acceptable for the next meeting.  Following that meeting a tour of the Michael 
Mervis’ operation in Decatur would be made available for the membership.  Chief Barton 
indicated he might have a conflict and Co-Chair Hoffman offered that anyone unable to 
attend the March 21st meeting was welcome to send a proxy.   
 
The Task Force meeting was adjourned at 11: 21 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
   


